A faclrint

CDRBG Compliance Requirements

304 ADA Grievance Procedure — Policy for the public to make ¢claims ot discrimination
duc to disability with regards to the denial of participation in 8 CDBG project.

Local Economic Benefit for Low- and Very Low-Income Pcrsons Plan (Section 3
Plan) — The Plan states that the CDBG recipient will make a good faith effort to fill
necded positions for CNDRG construction projects with lower-income residents of the
project area. Contractors and subcontractors have 1o adopt similar plans.

Procurement Policy Policy the CDBG recipicnt is to follow in the procurement of
Grant Administrative Services, Lngincering Services. and Conltractors for a project using
CDBG funding.

Code of Conduct Pohicy assuring that no member of the cleeted governing body,
anyonc in a deciston making position. or their immediate family will personally: or
financially gan [rom a project using CDB(G funding,

Residential Anti-displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan - Plan outlining the
relocation procedures for those homeowners displaced by a project using CDRG funds.

Onptional Coverage Relocation Plan/Rcesolution — The plan is adopted as an alternative
to the Uniform Relocation Act. This allows the CDBG recipient to be more Nexible in
the assistance provided to those hamcowners relocated because ol parlicipation in &
CDBG project.

Citizen Participation Plan — Procedures for providing access to project nformation (o
the public. Tt includes the process for properly advertised public hearings in an accessible
forum. Also included in the plan is a complaint procedure.

Project Ordinance — This ordinance provides the CDBG funding breakdown of the
project. It alerts (he CDBG recipient’s finance office of the accounting requirements of
(he (unding and how the funds should be tracked.

Equal Employnent and Procurement Plan — The plan assures that CDGB recipients
will not diseriminate on the basis of religion, race. color, crecd, sex. national origin,
disabilily. or age as it pertains to their hiring practices of employees.

Complaint Procedure - The Procedure tor the public (o submit complaints to the
governing body with regards to the current Scattered Site 1lousing Program.




Languape Access Plan (LAP) - The proccdure the County will follow to assist those
citizens/apphcants with Limited English Proficiency (LEP).

Fair Housing

Fair Housing Plan — Plan outlines a list of quartctly aclivities 1o promote Fair
[Tousing through the life of the project.

Fair Housing Resolution — Policy prohbiting the practice of discrimination on the
basis of religion. race. color. creed, sex, national origin, disability, or age as related to
the purchase or rental of housing within the Town/County. The resolution also urges
businesses and citizens to comply.

Fair llousing Complaint Pracedure — The Procedurc for the public (o submit
complaints to the governing body with regards to Fair Housing,

Fair Housing Analvsis of Impediments - Report analyzing the fair housing
impediments of the Town/County.




YANCEY COUNTY
SECTION 504 ADA GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

WHEREAS, the Board of Comnissioners of Yancey Counly, North Carolina is
commitied to complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act; and

WHLEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Yancey County, North Carolina
recognizes the potential for complaints regarding comphance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Board of
Commissioners of Yancey County, North Carolina docs adopt and wilt adhere to the
following Yancey County ADA Grievance Procedure.

Yancey County has adopted an internal grievance procedurc providing for prompt
and equilable resolution of complaints alleging any action prohibiled by the U.S.
Depariment of Justice regulations implementing Title 1T of the Americans with
Disabilities Act. Title [1 slates, in part, that “no otherwise qualificd disabled individual
shall, solely by reason of such disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination™ in programs or activities sponsored by a
public entity.

Complaints shall be addressed to the County Building Inspector, (828) 682 7833,
who has been designated to coordinate ADA compliance efforts.

1. A complaint should be filed in writing or verbally, conlain the name and address of
the person fiting it, and briefly describe the alleged violations of the regulations.

2. A complaint should be filed within thirty days after the complainant becomes aware of
the alleged violation. (Processing of allcgations ol discrimination which occurred
before this procedure was in place will be considered on a casc-by-case basis.)

3. An investigation, as may be appropriate, shall follow a filing of complaint. Lhe
investigation shall be conducted by the County Building [nspector and the Chairnan
of the Board o’ Commissioners. These rules assume informal but thorough
investigations, affording all interested persons and their representatives, if any, an
opportunity to submit evidence relevant to a complaint.

Under the Departmient of Justice regulations, Yancey County needs not process
complaints from applications for employment or from applications {or admisston to
post-secondary educational institutions.

4. A written detennination as to the vatidity of the complaint and a description of the
Resolution, if any, shall be issued by the County Building Inspector and a copy
forwarded to the complainant no later than thirty days after its filing.



5. The ADA coordinator shall maintain files and records of Yancey County relating to
the complaints filed.

6. The complainant can request a reconsideration of the case in insiances where he or
she is dissatisficd with the resolution. The request for reconsideration should be
made within thirly days to the members of the Board of Commissionets.

7. Ihe nght of & person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint (iled
hereunder shail not be impaired by the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the
filing of an ADA comglaint with the responsible federal department or agency. Use
of this grievance procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies,

8. These rules shall be construed to protect the substaniive rights ot interested persons to
meet appropriate due process standards, and (o assure that Yancey County complies
with the ADA implementing rcgulations,

flm
ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 7 day of_j_"f&-f;/___, 20 / L.

airman, Boaé of Comnuissioncrs




YANCEY COUNTY CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN FOR
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAMS

The Yancey County will provide cilizens with an adcquate opportunity for mieaningful
involvement on a continuing basis and for parlicipation in (he planning implementation, and
assessment of CDBG programs. The procedures for ensuring this are outlined below.

(1)  Citizen participation in the application process. The County shall

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(F)

()

Solicit and respond in a timely manncr o views and proposals of citizens.
particularly low-and moderate-income persons, members of minority groups, and
residents of blighted aceas where activities are proposed. The County shall respond
in writing to written citizens comments. Responses shall be mede within ten
calendar days of receipt of the ¢itizen comment.

Provide technical assislance to facilitate citizen participation, where requested. The
technical assistance shall be provided to groups representative of persons of low-and
moderate-inconie that request such assistance in developing proposals. The level
and type shall be determined by the County.

Provide adequate notices of public hearings in timely manner to all citizens and in
such a way as to make them undcrstandable to non-English speaking persons. Non-
English speaking persons should request assistance in a limely manner prior to the
hcaring by notifying the office of the County Manager. 1learings will be held at
imes and locations convenicnt to polential or actual beneficiaries and with
accommodations for the handicapped. A notice of the public hearing shall be
published at least once in the nonlegal section of a newspaper having general
citculation in the area. The notice shall be published no less than ten days nor more
than 25 days before the date fixed (or the hearing. Lhe notice of public hearing o
obtain citizens' vicws after (he application has been prepared, but prior to the
submission of the application ta the NC Community Investment & Assistance (Cl)
shall contain a description of the proposed project(s) including the proposed project
location, activities to be carried out, and the total costs of actjvities.

Schedule hearings (o obtain citizens' views and (0 respond to citizen proposals al
times and locations that permit broad parlicipation, particutarly by low-and
modcrale-inconie persons, members of minority groups, handicapped persons, and
residents of blighted neighborhoods and project areas.

Conduct one public hearing during the planning process to allow citizens the
opportunity to express views and proposals prior (o formulation of the application.

Conduct onc public hearing after the application has been prepared but prior to
submission of’ the application to Cl.



(2)  Submitang objections to the NC Community Investment & Assistance (Cl).

(A)

(B)

(©)

Persons wishing to objec( to the approval of an application by the Yancey County
shall submit 1o CI their objections in writing. CI will consider objections made only
on the following grounds.

(1)  The applicant's description of the nceds and objectives is plainly inconsiate
with available facts and data.

(i)~ The activities to be undertaken are plainly inappropriate to meeting the needs
and objectives identified by the applicant, and

(iif)  The application does not comply with the requiremenis of CI or other
applicable laws.

Al objections shall include an identification of (he requirements nat mct. In the
case of objections made on the grounds thai the description of needs and objectives
is plainly inconsistent with significant, generally available facts and data, the
objection shall include the facts and data upon which the objection is based.

I'he address of the NC Community Invesinient & Assistance is attached to this plan.

(3}  Submitting objections to the County.

(A)

Persons wishing to object directly to thc County please refer to the complaint
procedures established by the Yancey County that is attached.

(4)  Citizen participation is provided for in the program amendment process, if the County
proposes an amendment thal would require prior North Carolina Department ol Economic
and Conmmunity Development (NCDLECD) approval. The County will:

(A)

(B)

Will conduct one public hearing prior to the submission of the amendment to Cl in
the same manner as in Part (1), (A),(I3),(C) (D), of this plan.

Will respond to citizen's objections and comments in the same manner as in (2)
(A).(B),(C) and (3) (A).

(3)  Submitting Objections (o the NC Commnunity Investment & Assistance (C1).

(A)

Persons wishing to objecel 1o the approval of an amendiment by Cl shall make such
objection in writing. CI will consider objcctions made only on the following
grounds:

(1) The recipient's deseription ol needs and objectives is plainly inconsistent with
availabte lacts and data.



(6)

(7

(B)

(i)  The activities to be nndertaken are plainly inappropriate to meeting the needs

and objectives idenlificd by the recipient, and

(iii) The amendment does nol comply with the requirements of applicable laws
and regulations,

All objections shall include an identification of the requircments not met, In (he
case of objeclions made on the grounds that the description of nceds and objectives
1s plainly inconsistent with significant, generally available facts and dala, the
objection shall include the facts and data upon which the objection is based.

Citizen participation in the program closeout process.

(A)

(B)

Recipients shall conduet one public hearing to assess program performance during
the grant closeoul process and prior to the actual closeout of the grant in the same
manner as in Parl (1)(A)B)C) of this plan.

Recipients shall continue to solicit and respond to citizen comment in the same
manner as in Part (2),(A).(BXL(C) and (3)(A). of this plan until such time as the grant
program 1s closed.

Persons may submit written comments to Cl at any time concerning the applican('s or
recipient’s failure to comply with the requirements contained in this plan,

(1)

All records of public hearings, citizens' comments, responscs (o comments and other
relevant documents and papers shall be kept in accordance with Rule .0911 the
program regulations.  All program records shall be accessible o citizens in
accordance with Rule .0911(b) of the program regulations.

The Yancey County Complaint Procedure Process
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program

Persons wishing to object to the Yancey County’s Community Development Block Gram
Program shall submit a complaint in writing. The objection shall be addressed to the County
Manager, 110 Town Square, Room 11, Bumnsville, NC 28714, A citizen may comact the office
ol the manager by telephone at {(828) 682-3971 for clarification or further information on the
complaint process.

The County will respond within fifleen (13) calendar days of reccipt of the complaint. The
County will consider objections made on the following grounds:

a.) the recipient's deseription of nceds and objectives is plainly inconsistent with
available facts and data, and

b.) the activities undertaken are plainly inappropriate to mecting the needs and objectives
identified by the recipient.



All objections shall include an identification of requirenmients not met. In the case of objections
madc on the grounds that the deseription of needs and objectives is plainly inconsistent with
significant, gencrally available data and facts, the objection shall include the facts and data upon
which the data is based.

Additonally, the complaint shall contain:

Naote:

The name and signature of the coniplainant.

The address to which the County's response should be mailed.

A telephone number where the complainant, or an individual knowledgeable
about the subslance of the complaint, can be reached during daytinie hours.

The nature of the complaint, including any relevant information or
documentation.

A recomincndation concerning how the complainant wishes to have the matter
resolved.

In the casc of a handicapped person who is unable to prepare 2 written response. a
phone call lo the office (R28) 682-3971 (Relay NC may be used by calling 711 or
(877) 735-8200 for those who have a hearing or speech disability) will be
sufficient for such persons to imbiate the complaint process. The County will
make every reasonable efforl lo provide a written response to & complainant
within fiftcen (15) days of its reccipt or, if the complaint is about work presently
occurring al a property, an “action” response within two (2) days of receipt of
notice, followed up by a written response will occur. The County will indicate s
position on the matter and the action it proposes to lake. The County wil not be
obligated, however, to respond to any anonymous or fictitious complaints.

Adopted this the ; day of%"jt,;{' 20 /-L i 3 :

nnan Ccunl\ EOIIIITIISS[OHCFS




WHLRLEAS,

WILERLAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

Code of Conduct Resolution
County of Yancey

the Comnunity Development Block Grant — U.S. [Housing and Urban
Development Programs of the Federal and State Governments requires
Yancey County to maintain a written Code of Conduct for public

officials (elected and appainted), afficers, cmiployees or agents engaged in
the award or administration of contracts supported by federal funds: and

no public olticial, employee, official, officer or agent of Yancey

County shall participate in the sclection or in the award or administration
of a contract supported by federal funds if a conflict of interest, real or
apparent, is involved; and

Attachiment O Circular No. A-102 of the Code of ['ederal Regulations,
section 7, entitled “Code of Conduct™ defines such a conflict of interest
that would involve a financial or other interesl, real of apparent, is
involved; and

North Carolina General Statutes Chapter 14, Article 31, entitted
“Misconduct in Oftice™ provides standards, regulations, and penalties for
violation of state and local laws by public officials, officers, and
employcees;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESCLVED that North Carolina Gieneral Statutes,
Chapter {4, Article 31, entitled “Misconduct in Office” shall govern the code of conduct
required by the Coed of Federal Regulations, Attachinent O, and Circular No. A-102, as

set forth heretofore.

Adopted this zfl\ day of /] Lege, fd 2067 .

“hairman, Boar@ of Commissioners

“lerk (o the Board




YANCEY COUNTY
COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

Yancey County has Community Devetopment Block Grant (CDBG) projects currently in
progress.

The County has put in place the following procedure to handle complaints regarding their
angoing CDBG program(s).

During the Application Process:

If an applicant feels That his/her apptication was not fairly reviewed and would like to appeal the
dceision made concerning it, he/she should contact the CDRG Administrator within 5 days of the
initial decision and voice their concern.

[f the applicant remains dissatisficd with the decision, a detailed complaint should be submitted
in writing within 10 days of the initial decision made on the application. Yancey County will
respond in weiting to any complaints or appeals within 10 business days of receiving written
camments.

During the Kehahilitation Process:

If the honicowner feels that construction is nol being completed according to the contract, he/she
must inforn the contraclor and CDBG Administrator. The CDBG Administeator and Yancey
County Grants Coordinator will inspect the work in question consulting the Yancey County
Building Inspector as necessary.

If the work 15 found to not be in compliance with the work write-up, the CDBG Administrator
will review the work write-up with the contractor 1o remedy the situation  In the event the
problem persists, a mediation conference between the homcowner and the contractor will be
convened by the CDBG Administrator and the Grants Coordinator and facilitated by the County
Manager.

Should the mediation conference fail to resolve the dispute, the County Manager will render a
final written decision. 1f1the CDBG Administrator and Grants Coordinator find the work is being
completed according 1o the work write-up, the complaint will be noted. 1hen the CDBG
Administrator will discuss the concern and the reason for the County Manager's decision with
the hameowner.

IT vou have any questions about the complaint procedure or would like to register & complaint,
please contact | he Yancey County Manager at (828) 682-3971 or for TDD assistance call 711 or
(800)735-2962for Relay NC.

ADOPTED, this 77 day of %@aﬂ" , 208

hairman. O6unty Commissioners

SEAL




EQUAL EMPLOYMENT AND PROCUREMENT PLAN

The Yancey County maintains the policy of providing equal employment opportunitics
for all persons regardless of race, color, religion, sex, nalional origin, handicap, age,
political affiliation, or any other non-merit factor, excepl where religion, sex, national
origin, or age is a bona fide occupation qualificalion for cmployment.

In furtherance of this policy the County prohibits any retaliatory action of any kind taken
by any employee of the County against any other employee or applicant for employment
because that person made a charge, testified, assisted or participated in any manner in a
hearing, proceeding, or investigation of employment discrimination.

L he County shall strive for greater wtilization of all persons by identilying previously
under utilized groups in the work force, such as minorities, women, and the handicapped,
and making special efforts toward their recruitment, selection, development, and upward
mobility and any other term, condition, or privilege of employment,

Responsibilily for implementing equal opportunities and Affirmative Action mcasures 1§
hereby asstgned to the County Manager and/or other persons designated by the manager
or Board of Conmnissioners to assist in the implementation of this policy statement.

The County shall develop a self-evaluation mechanism to provide for periodic
cxamination and evaluation. Periodic reports as requested on the progress of equal
Employment Opportunity and Aftirmative Action will be presented 1o the Board of
Commuissioners by the County Manager.

The County is committed to this Policy and is aware that with its impleimentalion, the
County will receive pasitive benefits through the greater utilization and development of
all human resources.

Adopted this Z‘fj?day of%'ﬁ:.;’f__ R 20&.

gnature of Chairman
%/-".-__—-— —




YANCEY COUNTY
FAIR HOUSING COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

Yancey County has Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) projects currently in
progress. The CDBG program requircs that a Fair Housing plan and complaint procedure be
adopted by the County.

Housmg discrimination is prohibited by Title Vill of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 and by the
North Carolina State Fair Housing Acl. In an cffort lo promote fair housing and to cnsure that
the rights of housing discrimination victims arc protected, Yancey County has adopted the
following procedures for receiving and resolving housing discrimination complaints:

I. Any person or persons wishing to file a complaint of housing discrimination in
Yancey County may do so by informing the Yancey County Manager of the facts
and circumstances of the alleged discriminatory act or practice,

2. Upon receiving a housing discrimination complaini, the Yancey County Manager
shall inform the Nornth Carolina Human Relations Commission (Commission) aboul
the comptaint. The Yancey County Manager shall then assist the Commission and
the complainant in filing an official wrilten housing complaint with the Commission,
pursuant to the State Fair YHousing Act and Title VIII;

3. The Yancey County Manapger shall offcr assislance to the Commission in the
investigation and conciliation of ell housing discrimination complaints, which are
based upon events occurring in Yancey County.

4. The Yancey County Manager shall publicize within Yancey County area that the
Yancey County Manager is the local official to contact with housing discrimination
complaints based upon events occurring in Yancey County;

5. All complaints shall be acknowledged within ten (10) days of receipr.
If vou have any questions aboul (he complaint procedure or would like to register a complaint,

please comtact |he Yancey County Manager at (828) 682-3971 or for TDD assistance (800) 735-
2962,

711\ da

ADOPI D, this y of % o_r;,;,,gf“ .20

By:

(‘oimly : .;ommissianerq

hairman,



Recipient’s Plan to Further Fair Housing

Grantee:  Yancey County

Recipicnt’s Address: 110 Town Square, Room 11, Burnsville, NC 28714

Contact Person: Nathan Bennett Contact Phone #: (828) 682-3971

Contact Email: TDD #: (800) 735-2965
_nathan.bennett@yanceycountyne.gov NC Relay # : (877) 735-8200

L. [ndicate if the Recipient will be affirmatively furthering fair housing for the

first time or has implemented specific activities in the past.

First Time__ Past Activilies _ X
II. Identify and analyze obstacles to affirmatively furthering fair housing
in recipient’s community. (Usc additional pages as necessary)

‘T he primary obstacles (o aftirmatively furthering fair housing in Yancey County are
the following:

1. A large number of people within the community are unaware of the
existence of fair housing laws;

2. Many residents do nol understand (he rights and responsibilitics of
individuals covered by fair housing laws;

IIL. Wil the above activities apply to the total municipality or county?

Yes_ X No If no, provide an explanation.
(Use additional pages as necessary)

LV.  Briefly describe the quarterly activities that the recipient will undertake over
the active period of the grant to affirmatively further fair housing in their
community. A time schedule and estimated cost for implementation of these
activities must be inctuded. Activities must be scheduled for implementation at

least on a quarterly basis. (Use altached table)



Granteg: Yancev County

Quarterly Fair Housing Activity " Months T Year | Estimated | Actual
Cost _Cost _
Adopt FH policy, Complaint Procedure July-Sept. | 2012 $0.00 J
r o -
Provide County buildings with landlord/tenant Oct. — Dec. | 2012 $10.00
information. o
Provide area realtors and local lenders with TITUD Jan.— Mar. | 2013 £75.00
| homebuyer information. o
Pravide FH brochures in Counly buildings. _Afp r. - June | 2013 $10.00 L
Provide local Cooperative Extension oftfice with HUD | fuly - Sept. | 2013 $10.00
homebuyer materials. ]
Replenish landlord/tenant information as needed in Oct.-Dec, | 2013 $10.00
| County buildings. ] _
| Conduct a ['H fair, workshop, or expo, in conjunction
with an ongoing event if possible, to promote fair Jan.-Mar. [ 2014 | §$150.00
housing in Yancey County.
Post C urrent F[I Complaint Procedure on County Apr-June | 2014 $0.00
website.
Provide Coumty buildings with FI brochures and post | July-Sep. 2014 $10.00
FH poslers. -
Post FII Complaint Proccdure in County buildings Oct-Dec. | 2014 $5.00
I '. - H . H . r _’_
Prov 1‘de HUD homebuyer information in County Jan. — Mar. | 2015 $10.00
buildings.
Replo:nish FH brochures as needed in County Apr-dune | 2015 $10.00
buildings.
- m




V. Describe recipient's method of receiving and resolving housing
discrimination complaints, This may be either 2 procedure currently being
implemcnted or one to be implemented under this CDBG grant. Include a
description of how the recipient informs the public about the complaint
proccdures. (Use additional pages as necessary)

1) Any person or persons wishing to file a complaint o housing discrimination in
Yancey County may do so by informing the County Manager of
the facts and circumstance of the alleged discriminatory acts or practice.

2) Upon receiving a housing discrimination complaint, the County Manager shall
acknowlcdge the complaint within 10 days in writing and inform the Division of
Commumty Assistance and the North Carolina ITuman Relations Commiission
abou( the complaint.

3} The County Manager shall offer assistance (o (he Commission in the investigation
and reconciliation of all housing discrimination complaints which are based on
events occurring in Yancey County.

4) The County Manager shall publicize in the local newspaper. with the TDD#, who
1s the local agency to contact with housing discrimination complaints.

Approved By: ( _)
/’/
Johnny Riddle, Chairtman Z/’_’/%é/fZ/;

Name and Title of Signalure Date
Chief Elected or Execative Officer




FAIR HOUSING RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Yanccy County seeks lo protect the health, safety and wellare of its
resrdents; and

WHLEREAS, citizens seek safe, sanitary and habitable dwellings in all areas of the
County: and

WHEREAS, the County finds the denial of equal housing opportunities because of
religion, race, creed, color, sex, national origin, handicap or age legally wrong and
socially unjust; and

WIHLRLAS, the denial of equal housing opportunities in housing accomniodations is
detrimental to public welfare and public order; and

WHEREAS, the County finds the practice of discrimination against any citizen in
housing a denial ol his equal opportunily to seek better living conditions and to develop
community pnide;

NOW, THEREFORE., BE I'l ORDAINED, by the County Commissioners ol Yancey
County, North Carolina, that:

Section I. The County Cominiissioners of Yancey County have declared it an official
policy of the County government that (here shall not be discrimination in the terms and
conditions for buying or renting housing in Yancey County.

Section 11 All business groups and individual citizens of Yancey County are urged to
respect and implement this policy.

Section 1I1. The Chairman or his or her designate, is the official authorized to (1) receive
and document complaints regarding housing discrimination in Yancey County; and (2)
refer such complaints to the North Carolina 1luman Relations Commissioners for
investigarion, conciliation and resolution.

ADOPTED, this Z#‘dzlyolﬁ fv;z,g,;f__, 20

B/ St

i - L L
%ﬂ'man, Countv Commissioners




OPTIONAL COVERAGE RELOCATION BENEFITS POLICY
FOR

YANCEY COUNTY, NORTH CARONINA

YANCEY COUNTY
CDBG PROGRAMS
August 7, 2012



1. Organization and Administration

High Country Council of Governments will adminisier and coordinate all relocation
activities (temporary or permanent) resulting from Community Development activilies.
Relocation assistance and payments will be provided (o individvals and families
displaced as a result of Community Development housing code enlorcement, Voluntary
Demolition, or other Comniunity Development Aclivilics that are not otherwise covered
by the Unilorm Relocation Assistance and Real Properly Acquisition Policies Act of
1970, as aniended (hereinafier referred to as the “Uniform Act).

2. Eligibility

Individuals and familics residing in the Community Development Block Grant Project
Area, that are displaced as a divect result of housing activities or other community
development activities and which have unmet, long-term, rclocation needs are eligible to
receive assistance. [n addition, cligibility of the individual or family must have been
established and documented prior Lo the provision or financial assistance under this plan.
Familics who arec permanently displaced due lo unanticipated events such as fires,
Noods, or other man-made or natural disasters may also be eligible if they resided in the
Community Development Block Grant Project Arca identified in (he application for
grant assistance at the time of the disaster.

3. Authority

Optional relocation benefils are authorized by the Unitorm Relocation Assistance and
Real Property Acquisition Policies Act and the intcrim rule which describes the “Act™.

4. Assistance to be Provided

The following optional relocation coverage relocation policy is to be used during the
inmplenmentation of the Community Development Block Program. All persons displaced
in accordance with this policy shall be provided relocation assistance 1n accordance with
guidelines outlined under 49 CFR 24, “Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition for Federat and Federally-Assisled Program”, except as outlined below:

a) Displaced Person A displaced individual is someone whose home, which is
located within Yancey County, is determined to be in a condition too
dilapidated to be cconomically feasible to rehabilitate and will be demolished.
This can aiso inctude a person temporarily displaced as a result of program
activities such as housing rchabilitation.



b) Initiation of Negotiations The term “initiation of negotiations™ shall be
defincd under this policy to mean the date the Notice or Relacation Eligibility
is 1ssued to the occupant,

¢) Comparable Replaccment Dwelling The term “comparable replacement
dwelling™, as defined under 49 CFR 24, shall be redefined under this policy (o
mean & dwetling in which is (1) decent, safe, and sanitary as defined in 49 CFR
24.2(a)(8); (2) functionally equivalent to displacement dwelling; (3) adequate
in size to accommodate (he occupants; (4) on a site not subject to adverse
enviromnental conditions; (5) in a location generally not less desirable than
the location of the displaced person’s dwelling with respect to public utilitics.
commercial and public facilities, and reasonably accessible to the person’s
place of employment; (6) on a site that is (ypical in size for residential
development with normal site improvements including customary landscaping.
Ihe site will not include special improvements snch as outbuildings,
swimming pools, or greenhouses; (7) currently available 1o the displaced
person in the privale market; however, a government subsidized dwelling wnit
will be considered coniparable if it meets standards (1) through (6) above and
the displacement dwelling 15 government subsidized and (8) willwn (he
financial means of the displaced person, as defined under 49 CIR 24.29.
Circumslances permitting temporary relocation and basic conditions of an
emergency move will be followed wn accordance with 49 CFR 24.203(c)(4)
and 49 CFR 24.204(b) and (c).

d) Relocation Notices A "Notice of Relocation FEligibility” outlining all
information described under 49 CFR 24.203 (a) and (b) will be sent by
certified mail or hand dctivered to all displaced individuals concurrently with
any letter or document initiating negotiations (or the displacement dwelling.
Additionally the Coninwumity Development Administrator will, in all cascs,
precede the initiation of negotiations with a documented personal interview
with the individual to be displaced. Ninety-day nolices shall be prepared in
issued in accordance with 49 CER 24.203(c).

e) Level and amounts of CDBG assistance available to cligible individoals and
families shall include the following limits:

1) [Iomeowner Replacement Housing Payment- eligible homeowners, as
defined by 49 CIR 24.401(a) may recccive a replacement housing
payment, as computed in accordance with 49 CFR 24.401

2) Down-payment Assislance — down-payment assistance for cligible
tenants or homeowners as defined by 49 CFR 24.402(s) may be
received in an amount cqual to the relocation benetits, as computed in
accordance with 49 CFR 24.402(c). for at tenant or homeowner.



3) Rental Assistance - eligible tenants as defincd by 49 CFR 24.402(a)
may reccive an amount for rental assistance as compute din accordance
with 49 CFR 24.402(b).

4) Moving Lxpenses -- an eligible individual or tamily may receive
moving and related expenses as calculated in accordance with 49 CFR
24.302 (see tablcl)

S) Lligible individuals or familics may receive assistance in the form of
relocation planning, advisory and coordination services consistent with
those described in Section 24.205 of the URA. These shall include, but
not be limited lo, the provision of transportation as deemed necessary
and reasonable to supporl the relocation, assistance in submitting
claims for payment, counseling and education on relocation regulations
and coordinaling these activities with existing social serviec and
econonnc assistance programs as they are available.

6) Lligible 1enants may elect assistance as described in Section 104(d) of
thc Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Properly Acquisition
Policics Act and further described in Sections 570.496.a(b) and
570.606(b) of the interim rule. Their rental assistance provided for
relocation under this section is a {ollows:

i. A choice between actual reasonable moving cxpenses as
described in 24 CER 42.301(b)(1) or a fixed expense as
described in 24 CFR 42.302. Sce Table 1 below for the North
Carolina fixed expense schedule as prepared by the US
Department of Transportation.

Table 1 ]

r

Oceupant Owns Furnilare Occupant Does
Not Own Furnilure

~_Number of Rooms of Fumiture |

[ i I l f [Each i First Each
1 2 5 1 s 6 7 8 | Addnl | o Addu'l
oom
Room Room
- - - 1
5500 | s700 | 5900 | st100 | 1300 [ 51,500 | 1,650 | s1.800 | sis0 | s3s0 550

ii. Advisory Scrvices as described in 24 CFR Part 42, Subpart C.

fit. Reimbursement for reasonable and nccessary security deposit
and credit checks.

iv. Replacement [Tousing Assistance -- A person choosing to rent
must be oftered either (1) a Section 8 housing voucher/certificate
(through the housing authority) and referrals v comparable



replacement  dwelling  unity where the owner agrees 1o
participate in the Scetion 8 Program or (2) cash rental assistance
to reduce the rent and utility costs 10 30% of his/her income
(adjusled, as determined by graniee/recipient) for a S-year period
and appropriate referrals 1o comparable replacement dwellings.

) To prevent “windfall”, rental assistancc payments (o tenants who pay litle or
no rent, the following procedure will be unilized:

1) Prior to computing rental assistance the Community Devclopment
Administrator will determine the fatr market rent for the displacement
dwelling. [f the existing rent is above 75% of the fair marke( rent the
existing rent shall be used to compute the rental assistance payment.
[Towever, i the existing rent is less than 75% of the fair market rent,
thc fair market rent shall be used o compute the rental assistance
paynient.

2) In stluations where fair miarket rent is utilized to compute the rental
assistance payment and the tenan('s non-subsidized total monthly
housing cost is not affordable after relocation, the rental assistance
payment shall bc increased to the extent necessary to insure an
affordablc monthly housing cosl (i.c., total non-subsidized housing
costs less than 30% of gross income).

3) Actual rent may be used for tenants paying little or no rent if the usc of
fair market rent would create an undue hardship and prevent the person
from obtaining comparable standard replacement housing.

g} Owner-occupants of displacement mobile homes situated on a rented site are
cligible for down-payment assistance for purchase of & new mobile home site
in lieu of a rental assistance payment, in addition to a replacement housing
payment, if a comparable rental site cannot be located on a timely or cost-
cflcetive basis.

h) 1" such assistance as prescribed in the above sections is not sufficient to
completely relocate a household in accordance with the Uniform Relocation
Assislance and Real Property Acquisition Regulations (49 CFR 24), the
grantee/recipient may provide additional assistance as outline in 49 CFR 24-
404, Replacement Housing of Last Resort.



5. Affirmative Action For Low Income and Minority Persons

All Relocation assistance provided under this plan witl be undertaken in a non-
discriminatory manner. Any Low-income or minority individual or family assisted under
this plan shall rot be required to move to an area or low-income and/or minority
concentration as a4 condition of receiving relocation assistance, unless they have been
given opportunities to relocation 10 a comparable replacement dwelling that is not located
in an are a of low- income and/or minority concentration, if such opportunities are
available,

6. Temporary Relocation

Rehabilitation shall be conducted without relocation of the affected oceupants to the
greatesl extent fcasible. Should relocation be necessary and should available temporary
housing be substandard by the above definition, the minimum standards set forth shall
not apply. Such relocation shall be accomplished at the minimuin feasible cost. Of the
two moves involved, (out of and back into the rchabilitated structure) one may be
financed under a Fixed Paynient for Moving Expenses as described below. Temporary
relocation payments will be lintited {0 cover only thosc expenses that would not
otherwise be normal to the relocatee. That is o say, expenses that are directly relocated
to the temporary relocation and which are above and beyond thc normal expenses
incurred by the relocatee. These would include, but not be Limited to, reasonable
expenses for lodging for the period of dislocation, ravel expenses to and from the
lodging or other temporary relocation site, cosls for temporary siorage of honschold
belongings. This would not include reimbursement for expenses thal would othenwise
he incurred (meals, normial travel, cte.) Relocatees are required to submit receipts to the
County docimmenting the expenses for which they are requesting revmbursentent.

7. Relocation Record-keeping

Complete records, documents, and justification for payments made pursuant to this plan
shall be maintained in accordance with the guidelines under 49 CFR 24.9 of (he
“Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acqguisition for Federal and Federally
Assisted Programs™,

8. Complaint Procedure

Yancey County conforms to standard, ethical practices in the relocation of individuals
and families and dcsires (0 sce that all interests are protected. If there are any questions
or complaints, Yancey Counly solicits the cooperatton of all owners and requests an
opportunity 1o discuss them in an cffort (o satisfy all parties concerned. The County has
adopted the following Complaint Procedure:

Citizens may make comments at any point in the program including planning,
implementation, and closcout. Yancey County will respond in writing to written citizen
comments. Citizen comments should be mailed to the Yancey County Manager. Yancey



County Courthouse, Room 11, Burnsville, NC 28714. The County will respond (o all
written comments within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the comments.

Should any individual, family, or entity have a complaint conceming the Yanccy County
Community Developnient Block Grant Program, the complaint should first be discussed
with the Project Manager. ALL EFFORTS SHOULD BE EXHAUSTED TO
RESOLVE THE COMPLAINT AT THIS LEVEL,

[f the complaint cannot be resolved in this manner, a meeting with the Yancey County
Manager to discuss the complaint should be requested. The request should be in writing
and should bricfly outline the complaint. A meeting date and time will be established
within five (5) calendar days of receipt of the request. Upon meeting and discussing the
complaint, a reply will be made, in writing within five (5) calendar days.

If the citizen 15 dissatisfied with the local response, they may write to the North Carolina
Department of Comincrce, Division of Community Assistance (DCA), 4313 Mail
Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-4313. DCA will respond gnly to written
comments within ten (10) calendar days of the receipt of the comments.



OPTIONAL COVERAGE RELOCATION PLAN RESOLUTION
YANCEY COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

A Resolution Authorizing the Adoption of an Oplional Coverage Relocation Plan for the Yancey
County Community Development Block Grant Program.

B it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of Yancey County, North Carolina, | hat:

WHEREAS, Yancey County is participating in the Community Development Block Grant
Program under the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended,
administered by the North Carolina Deparlment of Commerce; and

WHEREAS, the relocation of individuals and families is an cligible activity under this program;

WHEREAS, Yanccy County has been allocaled funds under Title | of the Housing and
Community Development Act of 1974; and

WIHEREAS, it 15 the objective, spirit and intent of the Comimunity Development Block Grant (o
achicve the revitalization of neighborhoods through improvements of housing conditions for low
and moderate income citizens; and

WHEREAS, the rehabilitation of some dwellings units is so extensive that the work cannot be
accomplished without temporarily dislocating the residents from their propertics; and

WHERFEAS, soinc occupied dwelling units are untit for nnnan habitation, financially and
structurally no feasible for rehabilitation, and require demolition; and

WHERFAS, it is often undesirabte to permanently dislocate some residents from their
properties, change (heir status from homeowncrs to tenants, or increase their financial burden for

housing costs; and

WHEREAS, Section 105(a)(11) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as
amended, permits # CDBG grantee to design and administer an “Optional Coverage™ relocation
program which can provide benefits to displaces of dilapidated units which are snbject to
removal through tocal code enforcement activities (without real property acquisition), voluntary
demolition, or provide assistance to residents that are temporarily dislocated from their
properties; and

WHEREAS, such rclocation benefits must be utilized by the qualified recipient (o obtain
standard housing, cover moving expenses and related costs for those individuals displace by
grant activities; and



WHEREAS, an Optional Coverage Relocation Plan has been prepared and has been reviewed
by the Board of Commissioners of Yancey County; and

WIHEREAS, it is the desire of Yancey County to fosler such worthy objectives with the
Community Development Block Grant Program.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Yancey County,
North Carolina hereby adopt the attached policy of Oplional Coverage Relocation Plan, as set
fonh in Scction 105(a)(11) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as
amended. Such plan is to cover any and all financial obligations incurred during any nccessary
relocation of affected citizens.

VAl
Adopted this 7 day of 14, VL ,20_/2

iman, ¥ ancey County
Board of Commissioners




YANCEY COUNTY
Procurement Policy for Recruiting and Selecting Contractors
for CDBG Programs

As Administrator for the Yancey County's CDBG Program, the High Country Council of
Govemments (hereafter called “Iligh Country COG™) will adhere to the following policy
when recruiting and selecting contractors for the CDBG Scaltered Site Iousing Program.

L.

High Country COG will identity contractors that will work within the region
(Alleghany, Ashe, Yancey, Mitchell, Watauga, Wilkes, and Yancey Counties) by
advertising at lcast once during the lifetime of the project in the local newspaper in
order to solicit attention from qualified contractors, as well as, female and minority
owned businesses. 1f interested, they may complete a Contractor Registration form
and submit it, along with proof of insurance and a copy of their I.ead Based Paint
Sufe Work Practices centificate, to High Country COG. High Country COG may
check their employer, supplier, and personal references before adding them (o the
approved Contractors List. High Country COG may also verify insurance coverage
before adding the contractor to the appraved list.

High Country COG will follow informal bidding procedures when sclecting a
contractor {rom the approved Contractors Lisl to perform rehabilitation work through
thc CDBG Program.

High Country COG will send bid packets to all contractors on the approved
Contractors List. L he bid packet will consist of at least the following:

» Address and driving directions to the properly (properties) to be
rehabititated;

« Datc, time, and place to mcet the Grant Administrator for inspection of
units to be rehabilitated and/or contact information for the homeowner
for the conlractor to schedule an individual inspection of the property;

s Date, timeg, and place for bid submission;

s Date, (ime, and place for bid opening;

¢  Work write-up wilh a floor plan of the home to be rehabilitated.

Every cffort will be made (0 obtain at least three bids prior (o the opening.

[f less than two bids are received, the submisston deadline may be exlended to allow
bidders more time to submit bids. In this instance, the contractor who has submitied a
bid will be informed and invited and encouraged to bid again. All bids, regardless of
number received, will then be opened.

High Country COG will hold a bid opening in Yancey County, witnessed by a
representative from the County, and will read the bids aloud before recording them.
Bids will not be opened until at least ten (10) days after the contractors are allowed to
inspect the unit(s) which are to be rehabilitated.

Yancey County has the right to reject any or all bids and reserves the right to award
no more than two contracts per bidder at any given time,

1



7. Yancey County and High County COG reserve the right to deletc any item bid or to
add any additional items 1o the work write-up/ contract.

8. The lowest responsible bidder(s) will be awarded the contraci(s) taking
into consideration time, qualily, and performance. High Country COG reserves the
right fo reject a bid if its representatives detenmine that the rehabilitation could not be
adequately completed for the propased price.

9. All successful bidders will be notitied within ten (10) days of the opening.
All other biddcrs who did not attend the bid opening will be responsible for
conlacting High Country COG for the results of the award.

10. Contractors may be removed or suspended from the approved Contractors List for
any of the following reasons:

a)
b)

€)

g)
h)

)

k)

)

m)

Notification of the contracior’s debarment from receiving any federal
or statc funds.

Failure to start and/or finish jobs on time as set forth in the

contract documents and cstablished af the pre-construction conference.
Poor quality of workmanship.

Neglecting to take care of warranty work promptly and in a
satisfactory munner,

Failure 10 submit valid bids on a regular basis.

Falsification of any documents submitted to High Country COG.
Expiration of or failure to provide proof of insurance.

Failure 10 comply with 1erms and conditions set forth in the
rchabilitation contract.

Failure to promptly pay material and labor bills (i.e. subcontractors,
suppliers, and other vendors/creditors involved).

Consumption of or working under the influence ol alcohotic beverages
or illegal drugs on the job site by the contractor. his employees, or his
subcontractors.

Making “side deals” (regarding perforning the work specified in the
work write-up or any additional work) with 8 CDBG homeowner
while work for the CDBG Program is in progress.

Varying from the work wrife-up specitications withaut an approved
change order.

Failure to obtain the homeowner’s consent to work on the residence in
the homeowner's absence.

1. When selecting contractors for work that talls under the Local Option portion of (he
project (less than $5,000). contraciors may be procured any one of three ways:

1)
2)

3

Informtal estimates will be obtained verbally or in writing;
Estimates from local niaterial suppliers are obtained to insure lowest
cost when volunteer labor is used:

Bids wil! be solicited in an intormal manner as described above.



Yancey County and High Country COG reserve the right to change any of the
aforementioned requirements, Conlractors will be notified prior to the effective date of a

change.

f /
ADOPTEDIhisday7 of G/qa;f 20 /2.

an, Board o; Commissioners

Attest



Yancey County

Grant Project Ordinance
Scattered Site Housing Program
CDBG #11-C-2330

BE IT ORDAINED by Yancey Board of Cominissioners. pursuan( (o Scction 13.2 of
Chapter 159 of the general statutes of North Carolina, the following grant project is
hereby adopted:

Section 1. The project authorized is (he Community Development Project described in
the work statcinent contained in the Grant Agreement between this unit and the
Depariment of Commerce.

Section 2. The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the grant project
within the temnis of the grant document(s), the rules and regulations of the Department of
Commerce and the budget contained herein.

Section 3. The lollowing revenues are available to complete this project:

Community Development Grant $400,000
Total $400,000

Section 4. The following amounts are appropriated for the project:

Yancey County Scattered Site Housing Rehabilitation CDBG #11-C-2330

Housing Rehabilitation $ 320,000
Local Option (Emergency Repairs) $ 40,000

Adnninistration and Planning $ 40,000
Total Project $ 400,000

Section 3. The Finance Officer is hercby directed to maintain within the Grants Project
Fund sufficient specific detailed accounting records to provide the accounting to the grant
agency required by the grant agreement(s) and federal and state regulations.

Section 6. Requests for funds should be made (o the grantor agency in an orderly and
timely manner as lunds arc obligaled and expenses incurred,

Section 7. ‘The Finance Oflicer is directed to report quarterly on the financial status of
each project element in Section 4 and on the grant revenues reecived or claimed.



Scetion 8. The Budget Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future
costs and revenues on this grant project in cvery budget submission made to this board.

Section 9. Copies of this Grant Projcct Ordinance shall be made available 1o the Budget
OMicer and the Finance Officer for direction in carrying out this project.

"

ADOPTED this

ay of%ﬁétive .20_/7’ .

Chapgnan




RESIDENTTAL ANTI-DISPLACEMENT AND RELOCATION
ASSISTANCE PLAN

Yancey County will replace all occupied and vacant occupiable low/moderate income dwelling
units demolished or converted to a use other than as low/moderate income housing as a dirccl
result of activities essisted with funds provided under the Housing and Community Development
Act of 1974, as amended, as described in 24CFR 570.606(c)(2).

All replacement housing will be provided within three years of the commencement of the
demolition or rehabilitation relating (o conversion. Before obligating or expanding funds that
witl directly result in such deinolition or conversion, Yancey County will make public the
following information in writing:

I. A duescription of the proposed assisted activity;

2. The general location on a map and approximate number of dwelling units by size (number of
bedrooms) that will be demolished or converted to a use othier than as low/mederate income
dwelling units as a direct result of the assisted activity;

3. A time schedute for the commencement and completion of the demolition or conversion;

4. The general location on a map and approximate number of dwelling units by size (number of

bedrooms) that will be provided as replacement dwelling anits;

The source of funding and a time schedule for the provision of replacement dwelling units;

ang

6. The basis for concluding that each replacement dwelling will remain a low/moderate income
dwelling unit for at least ten (10) years from the date of initial occupancy:

7. Information demonstrating that any proposed replacement of dwelling units with smaller
dwelling units is consistent with the housing needs of lower-income houscholds in the
jurisdiction.

n

Yancey County will provide relocation sssistance, as described in 370.606(cX2), to esch
low/moderate income household displaced by the demolition of housing or by the canversion of a
low/moderate income dwelling unit 1o another use as a direct result of assisted activities.

Consistent w ith the goals and objeclives of activilies assisted under the Act, Yancey Counly will
take the following steps (o minimize the displacement of persons fram their homes:
1) The County will attempt to renovate deteriorated units instead of demolishing them
2) Only units which are beyond economical repair will be demolished.
3} Where feasibte, the County will seek to locale community facilities and related
development activities so ns to rmnimize the impact on low/imoderate occupied or
vacant occupiable dwellings.

/71 /6/@{{/;/

Dace Chainnan




LOCAL ECONOMIC BENEFIT FOR LOW AND VERY 1.OW INCOME
PERSONS PLAN

To insure that (he greatest extent possible conteacts for work are awarded to business
concerns located or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the Section 3 covered
area. as required by Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968,
Yancey County has developed and hereby adopls the following plan:

1. This Section 3 plan shall apply to scrvices needed in connection with the grant
including but not lintited to businesses in the field of planning, consulting
design, building construction/renovation, maintenance and repair, ete.

2. This Section 3-covered project area for the purpose of this grant shall include
Yancey County.

3. When in nced of a service, the County will identify suppliers, contractors, or
subcontractors located in the Section 3 area. Resources for this identification
shall include local directories and Small Business Adminisiration local
offices. Word of mouth reconymendation shall also be uscd as a source.

4, The County will include this Scetion 3 clause in all contracts executed under
the CDBG Program. Wherc deemed necessary, listings from any agency
noted in No. 3 above shall be included as sources of subconlracts and
suppliers.

5. The primc contractor selected for major public works facility or public
construction work will be required to submit a Section 3 Plan which will
outline his/her work needs in connection with the project. Should a need exist
to hire additional personnel, the Yancey County Employment Security
Commission shall be notified and referred to the contractor.

6. Each contract for housing rchabilitation, as applicable, for jobs having
contracts in excess of $100,000 shall be required to submit a Section 3 plan.

This plan will be maintained on file in (he grant oflice and shall be npdated
from time to time or as the grant staff may deem necessary.

Adopted this i day of%{fﬁi— 2047
2y

: %’ glf\fm'm Boarﬁ/{(‘ ommissioners
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AGREEMENT
Between the
High Country Council of Governments and Yancey County

For the Provision of
GRANT MANAGEMENT ASSISTANCE
SCATTERED SITE REHABILITATION

July I, 2012 — December 31, 2014

This Agreenient, entered into by and between the Righ Country Council of Governments
(hereinatter called the "Planning Agency™) and Yancey County, North Carolina (hereinalter
called the ".acal Government"), WITNESSETH TIHAT:

WHEREAS, the Planning Agency is empowered to provide planning assistance by the
North Carolina General Statutes. Planning mssistance shall consist of the provision of granl
management assistance regarding Yancey County's CDBG Scattered Site Rehabililation Project
Number 11-C-2330, more fully described on Attachment A to this Agreement; and

WIIEREAS, the Local Governnient has requested the Planning Agency to provide such
grant management assistance to the .ocal Government; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Agency desires 1o cooperate with the Local Government in
cvery way possible (0 the end that the proposed activities arc carried out in an efticient and
professional mannct.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows:

1) ‘L hat during the periogd of the Contract, the Planning Agency will furnish the necessary
trained personnel approved by the Local Government. The personncl will charge (he
exact numbcer of hours worked on behalf of the Local Government on his nonmal time
sheet of the Planning Agency.

2) Compensation - The Local Government will pay the Planning Agency $52,000 (fifty-two
thousand dollars) for the satisfactory performance of all services related to the
administration of the project, as defincd in the attached scope of services (Attachment A).

It is expressly understood that the total compensalion shall not exeeed the maximum sum
specified without prior approval of bolh agencics.



3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

Time performance - The Planning Agency shall ensure that all services required herein
shall be completed and all required reports, maps, and documents subnutted during the
period beginning July 1, 2012 and cnding December 31, 2014,

Interest of Members, Officers, or Employees of the Plunning Agency, Members of the
Local Government, or Other Public Officials - no member, oflicer, or emplayec of the
Planning Agency, or its agents; no member of (he governing body of the locality in which
the program is situated; and no other public official of such locality or localities who
cxercises any functions or responsibilities with respect 10 ihe program during his tenure or
for one year thereafter, shall have any financial interest, either direct or indirect, in any
contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be perfornied in connection
with the program assisted under this Agreement. hnmediate family members of smd
meimbers, ofticers, employces, and officials arc similarly barred from having any financial
interest in the program. The Planning Agency shall incorporate, or cause to be
incorporated, in all such contracts or subcontracts, a provision prohibiting such interest
pursuant 1o the purpose of this section.

Nondiscrimination Clause - No person in the United States shall on the grounds of race,
color, national origin, or sex be excluded from participation in, be denicd the benefits of,
or be subjecied to discrimination under any program or aclivity funded in whole or in pan
with funds available under the Housing and Commwunity Developmem Acl of 1974,
Section 109.

Age Discrimination Act of 1973, as amended - No qualified person shall on the basis of
age be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or othenvise be subjecied
to discrimination under any program or activily which receives or benefits from [Federal
financial assistance.

Section 504, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, ay amended - No qualified handicapped person
shall, on the basis of handicap be excluded from participation in, be denied 1he benetits
of, or olherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity which
receives or bencfits from Federal financial assistance.

Access to Records and Record Retainage - All official project records and documents
must be maintained during the operation of this project and for a period of five years
following closcoul, in eomphance with 04 NCAC 191. Rule .0911, Record keeping. The
North Carolina Department of Commerce, the North Carolina Department of Treasurer,
U.S. Departinent of Housing and Urban Development, the Comptroller General of the
United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, and records of the Planning Agency which are pertinent to the
cxecution of this Agrecment, for the purpose of making audits, examination, excerpts,
and transcriptions in comptiance with 04 NCAC 19L Rule .0911, Record keeping.



9)

10)

1)

Termination of Agreement for Canse - If, through any cause, the Planning Agency shall
fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this Agreement, or
violate any of the covenants, conditions, or stipulations of this Agreement, the Local
Govemment shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving wrilten
nolice of such termination and specilying the effective date thereof. In such event, all
finished or unlinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models,
photographs, and reports prepared under this Agreement shall, at the option of the Local
Government, become its property, and the Planning Agency shall be enlitled to receive
just and equitable compenasation for any satisfactory work completed on such documents
and other materials in dircct proportion to the extent of services actually completed.

Grantee Assurances - In the performance of this Agreament, the Planning Agency shall
comply with all applicable Federal rules and procedures vutlined on the attached pages as
E.O. 11246 Clausc and the Section 3 Clause (Altachment B)

Remedies/Sanctions or Breach of Contract Terms - In accordance with 24 CFR 85.36,
upon writen notice, the Local Government may withhold payments to the Planning
Agency 1f the Planning Agency shall fail to fulfill in a (imely and proper manncr its
obligations to the [.ocal Government under this contrac, or if the Planning Agency shall
violate any of the conditions of this contract. The l.ocal Government shall in its written
notice ta the Planning Agency fully deseribe the nature of failure or violation by the
Planning Agency, the corrective action required of the Planming Agency, and the Local
Government shall allow the Planning Agency thirty (30) days from the date of the
notification to correct such failure and/or violation. It such failure or violation is
corrected by the Planning Agency within thirly (30) days from the date of notification,
then the l.ocal Governmenl shall process payment(s) to the Planning Agency. If such
failure or violalion 1s not corrccted within thirty (30) days from the date of the
natification, then the Local Government may proceed to tenminate this contract,

L))



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Planning Agency and the Local Government have
executed this Agreement as of IS4 5 .20 /2

For the Local Government For the Planning Agcney

COUNTY OF YANCEY HIGH COUNTRY
COUNCIL QE GOVERNMENTS

F.xecutive Director

r/ﬁbmﬂm%

Adttest Attest




ATTACHMENT A

Scope of Services
Yancey County Scattered Site Rehabilitation Project

Scope of Services/Staff Assignment

The Scope of Services includes activities associated with the project administration and service
delivery. The High Country Council of Governments will assign Michelle Ball, High Country
Community Development Planner, the responsibility of administering the Yancey County
Scattered Site Project CDBG #11-C-2330. Phillip Trew, Director of Planning and Development
will provide averall supcrvision of this project. The scope of services will include the following:

b

2)
3)
4}
5)

6)
7)
8)
9)
10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

Maintain on file all corrcspondence, agreements, and documentation relating to project
activities.

Maintain documentation on the use of all project funds.
Process the Requisition for CDBG funds as necessary,
Complete all environmental review procedures.

Prepare all required public notices for publication, including request for Release of
Funds.

Prepare project amendments, if needed.

Verify homeowner's incoime.

Coordinate with local health department to obtain well and septic pennits.
Perform work write-ups on the homes scheduled (or rehabilitation.

Perfonm initial rehabilitation inspection, interim inspections and final inspection.

Coordinate relocation activities including clearance of existing home and selection and
sct up of new home.

Maintain complete files on each rehabilitation and relocation job with all documentation
required by program regulations.

Submit reports to the NC Department of Commcree (Community Investment and
Assistance) in a timely manner.

Aassist the Local Governnient in closeout procedures.
Submit quartcrly progress reports to the local government which would include; list of afl

project activities, expenditurcs, units accomplished, description of work in progress and
information on any problems with the grant,

Perform other activities deemed necessary for the success of the project.

5



Time of Performance

The High Country Council of Governments proposes to complete all activities involved in
administration of the Yancey County CDBG Scattered Site Project in a 30-month period
beginning July 1, 2012 through December 31, 2014,

Cost

Administrative Budget

The High Country Council of Governments will provide the above services, which includes
project administration and services associated with the housing rehabilitation and relocations for

a fee of $52,000. The budget is broken down as follows:

Adnunistration* $48,000
Travel 4,000
Total §52,000

¢ includes salaries, fringe benefits, and indirect costs

Assurances
Assurances arc attached as a parl of the contract.

Amendments
This scope of scrvices and budget may be amended as desired by mutual consent of the Local

Govermment and Planning Agency,

Schedule

Time spent on project — 35.5 hours/month on average
Time spent in Yancey County — 15 hours/month on average



ATTACHMENT B

Assurances of Compliance

Executive Order 11246

During the performance of this Contract, the contractor aprees as follows:

D

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

The contractor will not discriniinate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, color, religion, sex, age, or national origin. The contractor will take
affinmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employces are treated
during employment, without rcgard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, or national
origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: recruitment
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and
selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in
conspicuous places, available 10 employees and applicants for employment, notices to be
provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination
clause.

The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on
behal( of the contractor, state that all qualificd applicants will receive consideration for
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex age, or national origin.

The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, notice advising
the labor union or workers’ represcntative of the contractor's commitments under
Section 202 of Exccutive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of
the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

The contractor will comply with all provisions of Fxecutive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the Secretary of
Labor.

The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Lxecutive Order
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of
Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by
the contracting agency and (he Seccretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to
ascer(ain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

In the event of the conlractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this
coniract or with any of such rules, regulation, or orders, this confract may be canceled,
terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible
for further GGovernment contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and
remedics involved as provided in Execulive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by
rule, regulation, or order of the Sccretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.



7) The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every
subcontract or purchasc order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the
Secretary of Labor issned pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor ot
vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase
arder as the contracting agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions
including sanctions for noncompliance; provided, however, that in the event the
contractor becomes involved in, or threatened with, litigation with a subconl(ractor or
vendor as a result of such dircction by the contracting agency, the contractor may request
the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

Section 3 Clause
"Section 3" Compliance in the Provision of Training, Employment, and Business Opportunities.

a. The work 10 be performed under this contract is on a preject assisted under a program
providing direct federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban
Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 170lu. Section 3 requires that to the
greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and employment be given lower income
residents of the project area and contracts for work in connection with the project be
awarded to business concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial parl by
persons residing in the area of the project.

b ‘The parties of this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and the
regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development
set forth in 24 CFR 1335, and all applicable rules and orders of the Departnenl issued
thercunder prior 1o the exccution of this contract. The parties to this contract certify and
agree that they are under no contractual or other disability which would prevent them
from complying with these requirements.

c. The contractor will send to cach labor organization or ropresentative of workers with
which he has a collective bargaining agreenment or other contract or understanding, if any,
a notice advising the said labor organization or workers representative of his
commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post copies of the notice in
conspicuous places available lo cmployees and applicants for craployment and training.

d. The contractor will include this Scction 3 clause in every subeontract for work in
conttection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant or recipient of
federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant fo the subcontract upon a
finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by the Secretary of
Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part 135. The contractor will not subcontract
with any subcontractor where it has notice of knowledge that the latter has been found in
violation of regulations under 24 CFR Part 135 and will not let any subcontract unless the
subcontractor has first provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with
the requirenients of these regulations.



C.

Compliance with the provisions of Scction 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR Part
135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued hereunder prior to the
execution of the contract, shall be a condition of the federal financial assislance provided
to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such assistance, its successors
and assigns. Failure to fulfill these requircments shall subject the applicant or recipient,
its contraclors and subcontractors, its successors or assigns to those sanctions specified by
the grant or loan agreement of contract through which federal assistance is provided, and
to such sanctions as are gpecified by 24 CFR Part 135.

Lobbying Clauses

1

2)

Required by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employce of any agency, 8 Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the inaking of any Federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment,
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member
of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its instructions.

This is & material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or enlered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into thig transaction imposed by Section 1352, Tiile 31, U.S. Code. Any person who
fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of wot less than $10,000
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.



